CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

October 4, 2012 Meeting Agenda
25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington

7:00 P.M. - CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to do so at this
time. When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name and address. Please limit your comments to 3
minutes. If you desire a formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-886-5700. Thank you for attending this evening.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1.) AB12-075 - Stormwater Program Update Mr. Williamson

APPOINTMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Presentation —Awards and Chief for a Day Chief Kiblinger

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
2.) AB12-057A - Ordinance Amending BDMC regarding Planning Commission Appointments and Terms
Mr. Pilcher
NEW BUSINESS:
3.) AB12-076 — Resolution Authorizing Easement at Fire Station 98 with Covington Water District
Mr. Butkus

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:
MAYOR’S REPORT:
COUNCIL REPORTS:
ATTORNEY REPORT:
PUBLIC COMMENTS:

CONSENT AGENDA:

4.) Claim Checks — October 4, 2012 Check No. 38803 through No. 38851 (voided No. 33821) in the amount of
$164,332.41

5.) Minutes — Town Hall Notes of September 13 2012, Workstudy Notes of September 20, 2012 and Council
Minutes of September 20, 2012

EXECUTIVE SESSION:
ADJOURNMENT:

Americans with Disabilities Act — Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700)



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL o O T
Black Diamond, WA 98010

ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: Agenda Date: October 4, 2012 AB12-075

Department/Committee/Individual

Public Hearing for the 2012-2013 Mayor Rebecca Olness

Stormwater Management Program City Administrator —Pete Butkus

(SWMP) City Attorney —Chris Bacha

City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

Finance — May Miller

Public Works — Seth Boettcher

Cost Impact: $0 Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson X
Fund Source: $0 Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Timeline: Through 2013 Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher

Attachments: 2012-2013 Stormwater Management Program with edits

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City is required by the Department of Ecology (DOE) to update its SWMP. This SWMP
shows how the City meets DOE’s requirements in the National Pollutant Disharge Elimination
System (NPDES) Permit. The City will use this document through 2013 as there will not be any
changes in Permit requirements in 2013.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Public Works Committee recommended a work
study prior to the public hearing.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Public Hearing only.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vore

October 4, 2012




CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
(SWMP)

2012/13 ANNUAL UPDATE

PREPARED BY
Public Works Department
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
PO BOX 599
BLACK DIAMOND, WA 98010
(360) 886-25605700

City of Black Diamond i
2012/13 SWMP AnnualUpdate



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 — INTRODUCTION iuunumnsmensnrsmms ey s s s s i 4
1.1 INTRODUGTION st o i dih s i st sronms sma smessasssasenssasssnssmanasasns snsnaeanssnd 4
SECTION 2 —MONITORING AND REPORTING .......couieiiiiecnnrers s snreneessssssanssssssnsansssessssnsnes 5
2.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES ...ttt nanens 5
2.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES i:ce s i e s (0 i 0 00 e s sms s asa e 5
2.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES :cccccociimiimnmsnssmsnmsastssivos e s smssas s tisas st s s s v s ians 65
SECTION 3 —PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ......ccoi e srssssnrssessesssssnsssnessens 7
3.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES :..ooocosnnanm iy s s s s s oo o, 7
3. 2.CURRENT-ACTIVITIES io: o mnimnnims s s s s sen 7
3.3 PLANNED AGCTIVITIES .. c.ciuicmssimmssimmsmiassssssussimsvisvasssnsssdsssaseissssssissssississsasisisss i siasassidassassasssnians 7
SECTION 4 — PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND PARTICIPATION .....cccoocieeericernennineninnssseeseens 98
4.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES ...:ccconsmmeimenmmaimumnmasis s ssnmmsmsssssemisi o 98
4.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES. ...ttt ettt es et e e e e eaee e e e e e eme e ensemeaseseaseeaessansennens 98
4.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES ...ttt s e e e e nseae s n e e e s nsasassens 98
SECTION 5 — ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION.......ccccocieerecnneeeenn, 119
5.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES ..ottt e 118
5.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES ...ttt et h b et es st sb et e s aeeneene 1240
5.3 PLANNED AGTIVITIES ettt e a5 0t st srvmnvanfsnmnesneseg s seaneasenensasas 1348
SECTION 6 — CONTROLLING RUNOFF FROM NEW DEVELOPMENT, REDEVELOPMENT
AND CONSTRUCTION SITES ......otioiiisatirrasininisssssssssesses s sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnes 1414
6.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES ...t es e 144
6.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES ...ttt et b et et s et et e s nae 1542
6:3 PLANNED AGTIVITIES wisveviassammma s s e e e i e ensessssnsnns 1743
SECTION 7 — POLLUTION PREVENTION AND OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE FOR
MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS ...t cereseesssssssnnsse s ss e e s msane s sssemsan e e sesessane e s ess s snnnnssnens 1844
7.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES ..ottt s 1844
7.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES ...ttt ettt en et se e s e e 1844
7.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES ::coccccoi e i st s et s os i s s i s e v s s aaa 2045
APPENDIX A — SOME OF THE MAJOR STORMWATER ACCOMPLISHMENTS 2010...... A-1
STORM POND MAINTENANCE. .. ... e e e A-2
RAIN GARDEN...o..v:coominssnnums s o s susis s seon s s s, A-3
OUTFALL AND RECEIVING WATER SURVEY ...ovivormnmsn o ims it siisnm i A-4
CAT.CH BASIN.CLEANING.. ... .cccouimmmmmincunmmmismmmmmsmsos s smvssmasvs s i sssnss s e sisas N
STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP)......ooi it A-6
STORM SYSTEM INVENTORY AND MAPPING........coooiii it e A-7
City of Black Diamond 2

2012/13 SWMP ArnualUpdate



LIST OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

AKART All Known and Reasonable Treatment
BMP Best Management Practices

CESCL Certified Erosion and Sediment Control Lead
DOE Department of Ecology

IDDE lllicit Discharge Detection and Elimination
LID Low Impact Development

O&M Operations and Maintenance

SWMM Stormwater Maintenance Manual

SWMP Stormwater Management Program
SWPPP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program
TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load

City of Black Diamond
2012/13 SWMP ArnualUpdate



THIS PLAN IS BASED ON THE REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED IN THE WESTERN
WASHINGTON PHASE Il MUNICIPAL STORMWATER PERMIT. MUCH OF THE
LANGUAGE INCLUDED IN THIS DOCUMENT DESCRIBING PERMIT
REQUIREMENTS HAS BEEN TAKEN DIRECTLY FROM THIS PERMIT AND HAS
BEEN SUMMARIZED FOR EASE OF THE READER.

FOR COMPLETE REQUIREMENTS AND DETAILS, PLEASE REFER TO SECTION

S5.C OF THE WESTERN WASHINGTON PHASE Il MUNICIPAL STORMWATER
PERMIT FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY.

SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION

1.1 INTRODUCTION

This document constitutes the City of Black Diamond’s Stormwater Management
Program (SWMP) as required under Condition S5 of the Western Washington Phase |
Municipal Stormwater Permit (the Permit). In addition to the City’'s permit, this SWMP
includes the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) requirements on Lake Sawyer as
published in the TMDL document 09-10-053.

The purpose of SWMP is to detail actions that the City of Black Diamond has taken and
will take to maintain compliance with conditions in the permit. This SWMP will be an
attachment to the Annual Report Form for Cities, Towns, and Count.res which is required
to be submitted to the Department of Ecology gDOE) by March 31% each year.

The City’s SWMP is intended to reduce the discharge of pollutants from the City’'s
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System to the maximum extent practicable, meet
Washington State’s All Known and Reasonable Treatment (AKART) requirements, and
protect water quality. This goal is accomplished by the inclusion of all Permit SWMP
components, minimum measures, and implementation schedules into the City's SWMP.

In compliance with Permit requirements, where the City is already implementing actions
or activities called for in this document, the City will continue those actions or activities
regardless of the schedule called for in this document.

The City now is active in 5 areas of permit activity including:

Educating the public with a focus on homeowner activities

Involving the public in stormwater management programming

Building an lllicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program

Establishing a permitting, inspection program to enforce the DOEepartment-of
Eeslogy 2005 Stormwater Maintenance Manual (SWMM) for Western
Washington

* Reviewing all municipal operations and facilities and implementing new
operation and maintenance practices to prevent and reduce stormwater
pollutant runoff from municipal operations.

City of Black Diamond 4
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



SECTION 2 -MONITORING AND REPORTING

2.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES

Section S5.A, S8, and S9 of the Westemn Washington Phase Il Municipal Stormwater
Permit requires the City to develop, monitor, and report the City’'s SWMP. The SWMP
shall be designed to reduce the discharge of pollutants from the City stormwater system
to the maximum extent practicable and to protect water quality. The monitoring and
reporting requirement helps keep the City on track with Best Management Practices
(BMPs) to reduce the discharge of pollutants to stormwater.

2.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES

The current city activities associated with Monitoring and reporting include:

Submit the Annual Report Form for Cities, Towns, and Counties which is
intended to summarize the City’s compliance with the conditions of the
Permit. The annual report shall be submitted by March 31 of each calendar
year covering the previous calendar year.

Prepare written documentation of the SWMP and update at least annually for
submittal with the City’s annual reports to DOEthe-Deparment-of-Ecology.
Include with the annual report, notification of any annexations, incorporations,
or jurisdictional boundary changes resulting in an increase or decrease in the
City’s geographic area of permit coverage during the reporting period and the
implications for the SWMP.

Track the number of inspections, official enforcement actions and types of
public education activities for inclusion in the City’'s annual reports to the

B e T

Provide a description of any stormwater monitoring or studies conducted by
the City during the reporting period for inclusion in the City's annual reports to
the-DepadmertelEeclegyDOE,

Track the estimated cost of development and implementation of the SWMP.
Survey Black Diamond residents and businesses on any changes in behavior

related to stormwater education efforts.
Coordinate, as necessary, with other entities covered under a municipal

stormwater NPDES permit to encourage coordinated stormwater-related
policies, programs and projects within adjoining or shared areas.
Complete annual update to the City's SWMP.

[ ]

Summarize activities for the Annual Compliance Report.

Rain garden monitoring.

City of Black Diamond 5
2012/13 SWMP Arnaual-Update



e The Development Agreement for the major Master Planned Developments
requires extensive water quality monitoring by the developer before, during
and after construction; including a yearly review by the Water Quality Review

Committee.

: 60 g s s :The City will continue
with the current monitoring and reporting activities in 2012 and 2013.

City of Black Diamond 6
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



SECTION 3 —-PUBLIC EDUCATION AND OUTREACH

3.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES

Section S5.C.1 of the Western Washington Phase Il Municipal Stormwater Permit
requires the City to include an education program to reduce or eliminate behaviors and
practices that cause or contribute to adverse stormwater impacts beginning in 2009.

3.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES

The City surrently-has-been-edusatingeducates the public in-Black-Diameond-bythrough

direct mailings of stormwater articles in the city newsletter, posting educational
matena[s on the stenﬂwe%er@y websne handlng out matenals at C:ty sponsored

ané—eleeted—efﬁeaisworkshops to traln Cltv staff and elected offi czals and meetlnq W|th
businesses and owners of private stormwater svstems —'Fhe—ﬁsst—level—ef—eduea#en—has

pem&ﬂng—p;eeessr The current Cltv actlv;tles assomated w1th Public Educatlon and

Qutreach include:

e Educating the public about the need of the stormwater utility and the
collaborative effort needed from everyone in the City to improve stormwater
quality within the City.

e Training for City employees regarding illicit discharges.

e Meeting with businesses and the general public about the hazards associated
with illicit discharges and improper disposal of waste.

o Distribute illicit discharge information to target audiences through individual
meetings.

e Continue to track and maintain records of public education and outreach
activities.

s Gather feedback from the public through our stormwater knowledge survey to
evaluate the public's understanding of target behaviors.

3.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES

The City has the following goals for 2012/13 for actions recommended for continued
Permit compliance in public education and outreach:

City of Black Diamond 7
2012/13 SWMP AnnualUpdate



Distibute ilicit disa - : ;

¢ Receive feedback from the public on illicit discharge education efforts_and
evaluate understanding of target behaviors.

» Coordinate a short assembly to educate school children on the impacts of

stormwater runoff on the environment and Best-MaragementPractices

{BMPs) that homeowners can implement to help protect the environment.
Approach the local school district to set up regular educational outreach in the

schools.

e Summarize the 2848-public education activities in the Annual Compliance
Report.

City of Black Diamond 8
2012/13 SWMP AnnualUpdate



SECTION 4 — PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND PARTICIPATION

4.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES

Section S5.C.2 of the Western Washington Phase || Municipal Stormwater Permit
requires the City to provide ongoing opportunities for public involvement beginning in

2008.

4.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES

The current compliance activities associated with public involvement and participation

include:

The City has posted the SWMP document and Annual Compliance Report on
the City website.
Provide opportunities for public involvement in the review of the stormwater

comprehensive plan updates, SWMP updates, changes to the stormwater

utility charges, or other stormwater codes or similar environmental policies at

the early consideration stages at the Public Works Committee level.
Provide opportunities for public involvement and comment in the

consideration of the SWMP by holding a public hearing prior to adoption.

Review the SWMP with the Public Works Committee and receive public

comments in a public hearing prior to adoption.

Make the SWMP, the Annual Report, and all other submittals required by the

Phase Il Permit, available to the public.

Post the updated SWMP and the Annuaf Report on the City’ s websute

4.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES

The Clty will continue wnth the DUb|IC mvolvement and partlclpahon actlv:ties in 2012 and

City of Black Diamond 9
2012/13 SWMP Arnaual-Update



City of Black Diamond 10
2012/13 SWMP Arnual-Update



SECTION 5 — ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND
ELIMINATION

5.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES

Section S5.C.3 of the Western Washington Phase || Municipal Stormwater Permit
requires the City to develop and implement an ongoing program to detect and remove
illicit connections, discharges, and improper disposal, including spills, into the municipal
separate storm sewers ownedr or operated by the City. Specific program components
are outlined below:

e Prioritize receiving waters for visual inspection by February 15, 2010.

* Conduct field assessments of three high priority water bodies by February 15,
2011.

e Conduct field assessments on at least one high priority water body annually
henceforth by February 15, 2011.

e Develop a municipal storm sewer system map, to be available upon request
that shall be periodically updated and shall include the location of all known
municipal separate storm sewer outfalls, receiving waters and structural
stormwater BMPs owned, operated, or maintained by the City. Include
tributary conveyances, associated drainage areas, and land use for all storm
sewer outfalls with a 24-inch nominal diameter or larger, or an equivalent
cross-sectional area for non-pipe systems. The map shall include all
connections to the municipal separate storm sewer authorized or allowed by
the City, as well as geographic areas that do not discharge stormwater to
surface waters by February 15, 2011.

* Develop and fully implement an ongoing program to detect and address non-
stormwater discharges, spills, illicit connections and illegal dumping into the
City's municipal separate storm sewer system. Include procedures for
locating priority areas likely to have illicit discharges and field assessment
activities, including visual inspection of priority outfalls, by August 19, 2011.

¢ Develop and implement procedures for characterizing the nature of, and
potential public or environmental threat posed by, any illicit discharges found
by or reported to the City by August 19, 2011.

e Develop and implement procedures for tracing the source of an illicit
discharge; including visual inspections, and when necessary, opening
manholes, using mobile cameras, collecting and analyzing water samples,
and/or other detailed inspection procedures by August 19, 2011.

¢ Develop and implement procedures for removing the source of the discharge,
including notification of appropriate authorities; notification of the property
owner; technical assistance for eliminating the discharge; follow-up
inspections; and escalating enforcement actions if the discharge is not
eliminated by August 19, 2011.

City of Black Diamond 11
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



Inform and distribute appropriate information to public employees,
businesses, and the general public regarding the hazards associated with
illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste by August 19, 2011.
Develop and implement procedures for program evaluation and assessment
inspections, including tracking the number and type of spills or illicit
discharges identified; made by August 19, 2011.

5.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES

The City currently implements activities and programs that meet seme-efthe-Permit
requirements. The current compliance activities associated with the above Permit
requirements include:

Through Ordinance 09-917, city staff rew-has the ability to intervene and stop
illicit discharges, andto get involved to educate those that pollute unknowingly
and follow up with additional enforcement actions if compliance is not
afforded.

FourSeveral staff members-ircluding-three-public-works-staffand a
peliceman; have been trained on illicit discharge awareness, ardtDDE
response and enforcement. Additionally, one of the local fire district officers
has also attended training.

Continue to Rresponding to reported illicit discharge reports and documenting
the actions taken to eliminate them.

Continue to Prieritize-and-conduct field assessments of high priority water

bodies.
Continue inspections of major priority stormwater outfalls during the dry

season.
Continue to follow up on hotline illicit discharge tips.

Redline the stormwater system maps, highlighting those areas that have

higher probability of illicit discharges or connections to the stormwater

system.
Schedule a refresher course for responsible City staff to recognize and detect

illicit discharges and to follow up with enforcement actions.
Continue with the primary focus of the City's IDDE program. which involves

individual meetings with business owners and those responsible for private
stormwater system maintenance.
Implement the City IDDE program to detect and stop illicit discharges to the

City’s stormwater system by:
o__Characterizing the nature of illicit discharges
o _Tracing the source
o __Removing the source
- Educating those responsible

City of Black Diamond 12
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



5.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES
The City plans-te:will continue with the current IDDE activities in 2012 and 2013.

City of Black Diamond 13
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



SECTION 6 — CONTROLLING RUNOFF FROM NEW
DEVELOPMENT, REDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION
SITES

6.1 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES

Section S5.C.4 of the Western Washington Phase || Municipal Stormwater Permit
requires the City to develop, implement, and enforce a program to reduce pollutants in
stormwater runoff from new development, redevelopment and construction site
activities. Specific program components are outlined below.

e The City will continue with a program to reduce pollutants in stormwater runoff
from new development, redevelopment and construction site activities. This
program shall be applied to all sites that disturb a land area 1 acre or greater,
including projects less than one acre that are part of a larger common plan of
the development or sale. The program shall apply to private and public
development, including roads.

e The City of Black Diamond has adopted the DOEepartment-of-Ecelogy 2005
SWMM to address runoff from new development, redevelopment, and
construction site projects in conformance with Permit requirements. The City
has retained existing local requirements to apply stormwater controls at
smaller sites, or at lower thresholds. The DOE 2005 SWMMManual includes:

1. An enforceable mechanism that includes a site planning process and BMP
selection and design criteria in conformance with Permit requirements.

2. A BMP selection, design criteria and requirements that will protect water
quality, reduce the discharge of pollutants to the maximum extent
practicable, and satisfy State AKART requirements.

3. The legal authority, through the approval process for new development, to
inspect private stormwater facilities that discharge to the City’s stormwater
system.

4. Allows non-structural preventive actions and source reduction approaches
such as Low Impact Development (LID) techniques, measures to minimize
the creation of impervious surfaces and measures to minimize the
disturbance of native soils and vegetation.

City of Black Diamond 14
2012/13 SWMP Araual-Update



6.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES

The City code currently implements the majority of the activities and programs to meet
Permit requirements. The current compliance activities associated with the above
Permit requirements include:

e The City review and inspection staff hasis comeirg up to speed-en-the-full
implementation-of with the DOEepartment of Ecology 2005 SWMM.

o The City conducts construction and stormwater site inspections during the
pre—construction and construction phases

e The Cuty has implemented a permrttlng process with plan review, mspect:on
and enforcement capability for both private and public projects. This program
applies to all sites that disturb a land area 1 acre or greater, including projects
less than one acre that are part of a larger common plan of the development
or sale.

o The City reviews stormwater site plans for proposed development activities.

e The City inspects, prior to clearing and construction, all known development
sites that have a high potential for sediment transport.

¢ The City inspects all known permitted development sites during construction
to verify proper installation and maintenance of required erosion and
sediment controls. The City will enforce as necessary based on the
inspection.

e The City inspects all permitted development sites upon completion of
construction and prior to final approval or occupancy to ensure proper
installation of permanent stormwater controls such as stormwater facilities
and structural BMPs. Also, the City will verify a maintenance plan is
completed and responsibility for maintenance is assigned. Enforcements will
be made, as necessary, based on the inspection.

e The City implements an enforcement strategy to respond to issues of non-
compliance.

e The City implements a long-term operations and maintenance (O&M)
program for private post-construction stormwater facilities and BMPs.

City of Black Diamond 15
2012/13 SWMP Anngal-Update



* Enforceable mechanism in place that clearly identifies the party responsible
for maintenance, requires inspection of facilities, and establishes enforcement
procedures.

¢ The City has established maintenance standards that are as protective as

those specified in the 2005 SWMM for Western Washington.

~ Lo " he Ci bl i) Bl _

» The City ensures that all staff responsible for implementing the program to
control stormwater runoff from new development, redevelopment, and
construction sites, including permitting, plan review, construction site
inspections, and enforcement, are trained to conduct these activities. The City
has a Certified Erosion and Sediment Control Lead (CESCL) on staff.

e Copies of the DOE’s “Notice of Intent for Construction Activity” and “Notice of
Intent for Industrial Activity” are available to representatives or proposed new
development and redevelopment.

e Activities for the “Controlling Runoff from New Development, Redevelopment
and Construction Sites” component of the Annual Compliance Report are

summarized annually.

The City has the primary enforcing ordinances in place for the implementation of a
program to manage the proper handling of stormwater for development and
redevelopment. Some permitting processes need to be reviewed and appropriate fees
set. The City program includes:

e Inspect all new flow control and water quality treatment facilities, including
catch basins, for new residential developments that are a part of a larger
common plan of development or sale, every 6 months during the period of
heaviest house construction (i.e., 1 to 2 years following subdivision approval)
to identify maintenance needs and enforce compliance with maintenance
standards, as needed.

* Implement a procedure for keeping records of inspections and enforcement
actions by staff, including inspection reports, warning letters, notices of
violations, other enforcement records, maintenance inspections and
maintenance activities.

e Provide copies of the "Notice of Intent for Construction Activity" and copies of
the "Notice of Intent for Industrial Activity" to representatives of proposed new
development and redevelopment.

o With the TMDL for phosphorus on Lake Sawyer, City staff (and/or citizen
volunteers) takes water quality samples at Lake Sawyer.

e The City has used the DOE 2005 SWMM and the Lake Sawyer TMDL in the
Development Agreement for the major MPD'’s in Black Diamond.

City of Black Diamond 16
2012/13 SWMP Arnuat-Update



6.3 PLANNED ACTIVITIES

The City has a program to help reduce stormwater runoff from new development and

construction sites but has a goal to increase training and-hire-staff-with-expertise-in the

implementation of the DOE 2005 SWMM in order to maintain compliance as Permit
requirements are phased-in-modified over the next several years. Actions that are

recommended fercontinued-compliance-include:

e Review draft changes to Permit requirements regarding the control of runoff

from development, redevelopment and construotlon site actlwtaes

o Update and lmplementing process codes, fees and standards as necessary
and as |dentnr ed needs arise.

¢ Determine staff training needs and develop training strategles asu pdates to
Permit requirements are implemented by DOE.

¢ Adopt an update to the City's Shoreline Management Plan.

e Continue with the current activities to control runoff from new development,
redevelopment and constructlon sites for 2012 and 2013.

City of Black Diamond 17
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



SECTION 7 — POLLUTION PREVENTION AND OPERATION
AND MAINTENANCE FOR MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS

7.1_PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND DATES

Section S5.C.5 of the Western Washington Phase Il Municipal Stormwater Permit
requires the City to develop and implement an operations and maintenance program
that includes a training component and has the ultimate goal of preventing or reducing
pollutant runoff from municipal operations. Specific program components and due
dates are outlined below.

Establish maintenance standards that are as protective, or more protective, of

facility function that those specified in Chapter 4 of Volume V of the DOE
2005 SWMM for Western Washington.
Annual inspection of all municipally owned or operated permanent stormwater

treatment and flow control facilities, other than catch basins, and taking
appropriate maintenance actions.
Spot checks of potentially damaged permanent treatment and flow control

facilities (other than catch basins) after major storm events (10 year storm).
Inspect at least once, and clean if necessary, all catch basins and inlets
owned or operated by the City; February 15, 2012 [note: inspections and
cleaning of all City catch basins and inlets occurred in August, 2010;
inspections and cleaning will continue, as necessary].

Establish and implement practices to reduce stormwater impacts associated

with runoff from streets, parking lots, and road maintenance activities.
Establish and implement policies and procedures to reduce pollutants in

discharges from all lands owned or maintained by the City, including but not
limited to: parks, open space, road right-of-way, maintenance vards, and
stormwater treatment and flow control facilities.

Develop and implement an on-going training program for City staff whose

construction, operations or maintenance job functions may impact stormwater

quality.
Develop and implement a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for

all heavy equipment maintenance or storage yards, and material storage
facilities owned or operated by the City.
Keep records of inspections and maintenance or repair activities.

7.2 CURRENT ACTIVITIES

The City currently has activities and programs that meet some of the Permit
requirements. The current compliance activities associated with the above Permit
requirements include:

City of Black Diamond 18
2012/13 SWMP Arpuat-Update



The City has a program for catch basin inspections.

The City has completed a site assessment of City facilities, including the fire
station, the police station, the public works facility, the water reservoir and
pump station.

The City inspects City owned stormwater treatment facilities and continues to
adapt the inspection criteria as identified in the DOE 2005 SWMM.

The City has trained employees whose construction, operations or
maintenance job functions may impact stormwater quality in the
implementation of BMPs that will reduce or eliminate pollution from entering
stormwater systems from City facilities or operations.

The City’s_adopted maintenance standards are as protective-offacility
function-as-these-specified in the 2005 SWMM for Western Washington.

The City performs maintenance within required timeframes when an
inspection identifies an exceedance of the maintenance standard. For each
exceedance of the required timeframe, the City will document the
circumstances and how they were beyond the City’s control.

* The City annually inspects all municipally owned or operated permanent

stormwater treatment and flow control facilities, other than catch basins, and
maintains facilities according to the adopted maintenance standards.
The City performs maintenance on City ponds and BMPs within required
timeframes when an inspection identifies a maintenance standard has been
exceeded. For each violation of the required timeframe, the City documents
the circumstances and how they were beyond their control, and submits
documentation to DOE.
After major storm events, the City conducts spot checks of potentially
damaged stormwater facilities (other than catch basins).
The City implements practices to reduce stormwater impacts associated with
runoff from streets, parking lots, roads or highways owned or maintained by
the City, and road maintenance activities conducted by the City.
Procedures are in place to reduce pollutants in discharges from all lands
owned or maintained by the City and subject to this Permit, including but not
limited to: parks, open space, road right-of-way, maintenance yards, and
stormwater treatment and flow control facilities. Procedures include:
o__Proper application of fertilizer, pesticides, and herbicides
Sediment and erosion control (the City has a CESCL on staff)
o __Proper landscape maintenance and vegetation disposal
o__Proper trash management
«o Proper maintenance and cleaning of City buildings
City employees, whose construction, operations or maintenance job functions
may impact stormwater quality, receive training on an as-needed basis.
o StormwaterPollution-PreventionPlanrs{SWPPP's) are in place for all heavy
equipment maintenance or storage yards, and material storage facilities
owned or operated by the City in areas subject to this Permit that are not
required to have coverage under the Industrial Stormwater General Permit.
Tracking and documentation methods, along with procedures associated with

O

inspection, maintenance or repair activities, are being utilized by City staff.

City of Black Diamond 19
2012/13 SWMP Arnual-Update



e The design and construction of an equipment wash facility at the City's
maintenance site is underway and will be completed in 2012.

with current activities to prevent pollution from municipal maintenance operations for
2012 and 2013. The City is also working on completing the development of site and
handling procedures for storage, processing. and reusing street and storm waste with

assistance from the King County Solid Waste Treatment Division, which is not a
rquirement of the Permit.

City of Black Diamond 20
2012/13 SWMP Annual-Update



APPENDIX A

wM
I
!

21

pdate

2012/13 SWMP Annual-U

City of Black Diamond



APPENDIX A

=
=X
=
[m
o
E
(1]
o]
=3
o
=3
»
3
D
<

Private Stormwater System Inspections

[TER, =4 * ) - T

Vo

. e o g 8 a2t
B

g
-

2

| v e e e o e
e B et o e

.
-
bty et o et e

oty ot g o 4 o e

Ly st e € S b bt

IDDE Program IDDE Education

THE CITY CORNECTION

City of Black Diamond 22
2012/13 SWMP Aanrual-Update



APPENDIX A
SOME-OFTHEMAJOR RECENT STORMWATER

ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2010

City of Black Diamond A-1
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A
SOME-OFTHEMAJOR-RECENT STORMWATER

ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2010

City of Black DiahorRR e IR . A-2
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A
SOME-OFTFHEMAJOR-RECENT STORMWATER

ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN2010

City of Black Diamond
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A
SOME-OFTFHEMAJOR RECENT STORMWATER

ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-26010

City of Black Diamond A-4
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A
SOME-OFTHEMAJORRECENT STORMWATER
ACCOMPLISHMENTS

- N R
i i
> P




APPENDIX A
SOME-OFTFHEMAJOR RECENT STORMWATER

ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2010

City of Black Diamond A-6
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A
SOMEOETHEMAJOR RECENT STORMWATER
~ ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2818

e BN T R e
V5 Sl TS

L 0y

el 3 -

Ty @

City of Black Diamond A-7
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A
SOMEOETHEMAJORRECENT STORMWATER
ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2010
Public Education Survey

The City has sent out education materials regarding stormwater and illicit
discharges. In order to determine how these materials have been received within
the community, City staff prepared an online survey for residents and businesses
to take. From the results of the survey, staff was able to determine which areas
of stormwater could use more attention and which areas the community has a

firm grasp on.

4. True or faise: You have seen educational articles flyers/other educational
materials from the City of Black Diamond in utility bilis/City newsletters/City events
{such as Miner's Day, Labor Day):

~ True

r False

r Not sure

5. Do you agree or disagree with the following statement: An lllicit or unlawful
stormwater discharge Is primarily defined as anything that enters the stormwater
system that is not made up entirely of stormwater:

¢ Agree

~ Disagree

« Notsure

6. Do you agree or disagree with the lollowing statement: Stormwater runoft is the
leading cause of pollution in our lakes, creeks, and wetlands:

r Agree

r Disagree

r Notsure

7. What happens to stormwater runoff within the City of Black Diamond?
- Goes into the nearest water body with treatment

 Goes into the nearest water body without treatment

 Enters into the sewer system and is sent to the sewer treatment plant
" Notsure

8. When it comes to washing your vehicle, which of the following best describes
you:

 lusually wash my vehicle at home

r lusually wash my vehicle at a commercial car wash

r lusually wash my vehicle at charity car washes (fundraisers)

r Not applicable

City of Black Diamond A-8
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A

SOME-OFTHEMAJOR-RECENT STORMWATER
ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN2010

Private Stormwater System Inspections

Many homeowners associations, businesses, and even individual residences
have private stormwater systems. City Code requires that these systems be
inspected annually and maintained as necessary. As this requirement is a bit
new for most, City staff took the initiative to meet with individuals to help with the
first inspection and to show what to look for. We have received some good
feedback and are pleased with the excitement that has been shown towards
private stormwater system maintenance. This effort required a lot of staff time for
researching the original plans for some of these systems and contacting property
owners, but the effort is worth avoiding compliance issues in the future.

bad >

City of Black Diamond A-9
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A

SOMEOEFTHEMAJORRECENT STORMWATER
ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2010

IDDE Program

City staff created a program to detect, characterize, trace, and eliminate illicit
discharges. Education is a major part of this program as well. By regulating illicit
discharges, the City will be able to help protect lakes and creeks within City limits
as well as downsteam waterways in the Puget Sound region.

Components of this program include storm system mapping, outlining City
ordinances, investigation and response procedures, public education and record-

keeping.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION and
ELIMINATION (IDDE) PROGRAM

August 2011

PREPARED BY
Public Works Department
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
PO BOX 599
BLACK DIAMOND, WA 98010
(360) 886-2560

City of Black Diamond A-10
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A

SOMEOFTHEMAJORRECENT STORMWATER
ACCOMPLISHMENTSIN-2010

IDDE Education

City staff focused education efforts towards IDDE in 2011. Newsletters were
greatly utilized for getting the message out about illicit discharges and and how to
prevent them. Flyers with details about illicit discharges are being passed out to
the businesses within the City during individual meetings with City staff.

These education efforts are very important to ensure that we can all keep our
lakes and creeks clean. The end goal is to demonstrate what constitutes an illicit
discharge and how simple it is to make sure an illicit discharge does not happen

by accident or on purpose.

PAGE 3 THE CITY CONNECTION

| THE DRAIN'S JUST FOR'RAIN |

composting sc

City of Black Diamond A-11
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A

SOME-OFTHE-MAJOR RECENT STORMWATER
ACCOMPLISHMENTS-EN-2016

Street Sweeping

The City was able to sweep most of the streets within the City in 2011. Sweeping
the streets is important to help make sure that stormwater runoff is clean during a
storm event. Sweeping picks up debris that contributes to pollution of the
stormwater system and waterways.

City of Black Diamond A-12
2011 SWMP Annual Update



APPENDIX A

GIS Training

Being able to map the City's infrastructure is very important. With GIS (Geographic
Information Systems), City staff can create and modify maps of the City’'s
stormwater system. GIS allows City staff to map exact locations with the City's
GPS system and attach photos and other information (including maintenance
records and schedules) to specific points within the City (including each individual
catch basin and outfall). With permission from owners of private stormwater
systems, City staff can also map private systems to help property owners have a
record of their own individual systems.

Two staff members received training from King County on GIS software. This
training has already come in useful for creating stormwater maps to meet
requirements set in the City’s Permit from DOE.

e ) Legend
*  Catch Basn

N —— Storm Prpe
N S5 Lo |
—— Stream |

City of Black Diamond A-13
2011 SWMP Annual Update



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: October 4, 2012 ABI12 -057A
Ordinance No. 12-981, amending Department/Committee/Individual
Chapter 2.24, Black Diamond Mayor Rebecca Olness

City Administrator — Pete Buikus

Municipal Code, regarding qualifi- City Atiorney _Chris Bacha

cations and terms of membership City Clork — Brenda L. Martine

for the Planning Commission Finance — May Miller
Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Cost Impact: NA Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson
Fund Source: NA Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Timeline: NA Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher X
Attachments: Proposed Ordinance No. 12-981; appointment process
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

During its consideration of confirming the two most recent appointments to the City Planning
Commission, the City Council determined it desired to have changes made to the appointment process.
The matter was referred to the Council’s Planning and Community Services Committee.

The Committee met with the Mayor and staff and proposed the attached amendment to the Municipal
Code. The proposed code amendment would reduce the term limits of commissioners from six years to
four years, effective at the expiration of the applicable position’s term. The amendment also creates a list
of qualifications for potential Commission members, indicating a preference for maintaining equitable
geographic representation within the community, Membership is limited to either residents or owners of
businesses with a physical presence within the city limits. Finally, the amendment also provides a
mechanism for the removal of a commissioner, should that become necessary.

Also attached is the Committee-approved process for the appointment process. This will involve the
participation of both a Council member and a Planning Commission member. This will not become part
of the Municipal Code, but will become standard policy.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Final review and approval by the Planning and
Community Services Committee occurred on May 31, 2012. Council reviewed at work study session on
September 20, 2012 and agreed ordinance was ready to move forward.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Ordinance 12-981, amending
BDMC 2.24 regarding the qualifications and terms of membership for the
Planning Commission.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

July 19, 2012 Deferred to future Council work study session 3-0

September 20, 2012 Reviewed at Council work study session

October 4, 2012




CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
WASHINGTON
ORDINANCE NO. 12-981

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO ESTABLISHMENT OF
THE PLANNING COMMISSION; SHORTENING THE
TERM OF MEMBERSHIP TO FOUR YEARS;
ESTABLISHING QUALIFICATIONS OF MEMBERSHIP;
PROVIDING FOR REMOVAL OF COMMISSION
MEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City has authority pursuant to RCW 35A.63.020 to establish a planning
commission and provide for its membership and organization; and

WHEREAS, the City has previously established a Planning Commission which
authorization has been codified at Chapter 2.24 of the Black Diamond Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to shorten the current six-year term of Planning
Commission Members, establish qualifications for membership, and establish authority for
removal of members; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to enact this ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Black Diamond, Washington, do
ordain as follows:

Section 1. Amendment of BDMC 2.24.010 (Membership). Section 2.24.010 of the
Black Diamond Municipal Code is hereby repealed in its entirety and re-cnacted to read as
follows:

2.24.010 Membership.

Ordinance No. 12-981



Pursuant to RCW Chapter 35A.63, there is created for the city a planning agency to be
known as the city planning commission, consisting of seven members who shall be appointed by
the mayor and confirmed by the city council.

A. The existing term of office of each member of the planning commission shall
expire according to the following schedule:

Position I:  term expires December 31, 2014
Position 2:  term expires December 31, 2015
Position 3:  term expires December 31, 2016
Position 4:  term expires December 31, 2017
Position 5:  term expires December 31, 2012
Position 6:  term expires December 31, 2013
Position 7:  term expires December 31, 2013

Following the term expiration dates noted above, each term shall be four vears  in
duration.

B. Qualifications. Members of the planning commission shall be selected from
individuals who have an interest in planning, land use, environmental affairs or
residential and commercial development as evidenced by training, experience or actions.
Consideration will also be given toward maintaining an equitable balance of geographic
representation of the community, Membership on the planning commission shall be
limited to individuals who reside in the community at least 180 days each calendar year
or owners of businesses with a physical presence within the City.

C. The planning commission may adopt rules and procedures to address the conduct
of its meetings, election of officers, and other administrative matters.

E. Removal. A planning commissioner may be removed by the Mayor, with the
concurrence of the city council, for misfeasance or malfeasance in office, or other just
cause, or for unexcused absences from more than three consecutive meetings. Failure of a
planning commission member to either reside in or be a business owner in the city shall
constitute forfeiture of office. The decision of the City Council regarding membership on
the planning commission shall be final.

F. Vacancies occurring otherwise than through the expiration of terms shall be filled
for the unexpired terms. Members shall serve without compensation.

Section 2. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance, or its application o any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances.

Ordinance No. 12-981



Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of

the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication.

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON

THE 4TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2012.

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:

Brenda L.. Martinez, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

Chris D. Bacha,
Kenyon Disend PLLC
City Attorney

Filed with the City Clerk:
Passed by the City Council:
Ordinance No.

Date of Publication:
Effective Date:

Ordinance No. 12-981

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

Rebecca Olness, Mayor



PROCEDURE FOR FILLING PLANNING COMMISSION VACANCIES

Vacancies are created either by expiration of a term, resignation of a Commission member or

removal of a member by the Mayor,

It is the goal of the appointment pracass to maintain a full seven-member Commission. No more

than one meeting should elapse without a vacancy being filted.

All vacancies will be advertised on the City’'s website for a minimum two week period. The

Mayor will also announce vacancies at a City Council meeting. Time permitting, vacancies will

also be announced at Planning Commission meetings.

Individuals interested in serving on the Commission will be required to submit a written i
application ta the City Clerk by a specified date. The application shall include questions that :
address the criteria for Commission membership as outlined in Municipal Code,

A commitiee consisting of the Mayor, one City Councilmember, one Planning Commission

member and ane City staff member will review the applications and determine which individuals

to invite for a formal Interview.

The same committee will also conduct candidate interviews. The same questions will be asked

of each candidate. Follow-up questions may also be asked. Each committee member will score

each candidate on a common scale.

The committee will discuss qualifications and scoring to determine which candidate should be

recommended for appointment.

All candidate materials and committee scare sheets shall be retained by the City Clerk.

The Mayor will recommend the selected candidate for appointment. Confirmation by the City

Council is required per Municipal Code,



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: Agenda Date: October 4, 2012 AB12-076
| [ Department/Committee/Individual
Resolution No. 12-833, authorizing the Mayor Rebecca Olness
Mayor to execute an easement and City Administrator - Pete Butkus X
maintenance agreement with the City Attorney —Chris Bacha
Covington Water District for water City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez
system work performed at Fire Station Finance — May Miller
o8 Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Cost Impact: Economic Devel. — Andy Williamson
Fund Source: Police — Jamey Kiblinger
Timeline: Court — Stephanie Metcalf
Comm. Dev. — Steve Pilcher

Attachments; Resolution No. 12-833; Exhibits A and B; Staff report

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Please see the attached staff report.

COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 12-833, authorizing
the Mayor to sign the Easement and the Maintenance Agreement for water

line work at Fire Station 98.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

October 4, 2012




RESOLUTION NO. 12-833

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT
AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE
COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT FOR WATER SYSTEM
WORK PERFORMED AT FIRE STATION 98 LOCATED AT
22015 SE 296™ STREET, BLACK DIAMOND

WHEREAS, water system improvements including a water line extension, post indicator
valve and a back-flow prevention device were constructed at Fire Station 98 under the
supervision of the Black Diamond/Mountain View Fire Department; and

WHEREAS, the Covington Water District now desires to have an easement for the
facilities located under and on the ground that are direct connection to their water

system; and

WHEREAS, a limited-term Maintenance Agreement is also sought;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the attached Easement identified
as Exhibit “A” with the Covington Water District.

Section 2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the attached Maintenance
Agreement identified as Exhibit “B” with the Covington Water District.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 4TH DAY OF OCTOBER,

2012,
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



AFTER RECORDING, PLEASE RETURN TO:

District Engineer EXHIBIT A
Covington Water District

18631 S.E. 300™ Place

Covington, WA 98042

Document Title: Easement for Water Pipeline
Grantor(s): City of Black Diamond
Grantee: COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT

Abbreviated Legal Description: Section 4, Township 21 North, Range 6 East

(Complete legal description on Exhibit A)

Assessor's Property Tax
Parcel/Account Number(s): 042106-9092 22015 SE 296" St Black Diamond

Reference Number(s) of

Documents Assigned
or Released: 8912220671

EASEMENT FOR WATER PIPELINE

The undersigned, King County Fire District 44 (“Grantor”), for and in consideration of good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged,
hereby grants and conveys to Covington Water District, a Washington municipal corporation in
King County, Washington (“Grantee”), and its successors and assigns, a permanent easement
for a water pipeline and appurtenances thereto (“Easement™) as follows:

1. Nature and Location of Easement. Grantor owns that certain rea! property legally
described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Real
Property”). The Easement granted by Grantor herein shall be a permanent easement for the
benefit of Grantee over, upon, across, through and under a portion of the Real Property, such
Easement being legally described on Exhibit “B” and depicted on Exhibit “C”, attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, for the purposes of installing, laying,
constructing, maintaining, inspecting, repairing, removing, replacing, renewing, using and




operating water lines, together with all facilities, connectors and appurtenances (*Water
Lines™), including the right of ingress and egress with all necessary vehicles and equipment for

said purposes.

2, Right of Entry. Grantee shall have the right, without notice and without prior institution
of any suit or proceeding at law or equity, at all times as may be necessary to enter upon the
Real Property to install, lay, construct, maintain, inspect, repair, remove, replace, renew, use
and operate the Water Lines for the purposes of serving the Real Property and other properties
with utility service. Grantee agrees to restore the Real Property as nearly as reasonably
possible to its condition prior to any material disturbance from construction, operation,
maintenance, repair, or replacement of the Water Lines.

3. Encroachment/Construction Activity. Grantor shall not undertake, authorize, permit or
consent to any construction or excavation including, without limitation, digging, tunneling, or
other forms of construction activity on or near the Easement which might in any fashion
unearth, undermine, or damage the Water Lines or endanger the lateral or other support of the
Water Lines without Grantee's prior written approval. Grantor further agrees that no structure
or obstruction including, without limitation, fences and rockeries shall be erected over, upon or
within the Easement, and no trees, bushes or other shrubbery shall be planted or maintained
within the Easement, provided Grantor shall have full use of the surface of the Real Property
within the Easement, so long as such use does not interfere with the Easement or the Water

Lines.

4, Future Change of Grade. If, in the future, the surface grade of the Real Property is
changed by the Grantor, the then owner of the property agrees to pay the District the cost of
relocating the Water Lines so that the amount of earth covering the same (the depth thereof)
meets the District’s then minimum standards and specifications.

5. Binding Effect/ Warranty of Title. The Easement and the covenants, terms, and
conditions contained herein are intended to and shall run with the Real Property and shall be
binding upon Grantor and Grantee, and their respective successors, heirs and assigns. Grantor
warrants that Grantor has good title to the Real Property and warrants the Grantee title to and

quiet enjoyment of the Easement.

6. Indemnity. By accepting and recording this Easement, Grantee agrees to indemnify and
hold harmless Grantor from any and all claims for injuries or damages suffered by any person
or property which may be caused by the Grantee's exercise of the rights granted herein;
provided, that Grantee shall not be responsible to Grantor for any injuries or damages suffered
by any person or property caused by acts or omissions of Grantor or its agents.

7. Attorneys' Fees. If either party brings any suit or other proceeding arising out of or in
connection with this Easement, the prevailing party (as determined by the court or other

o



authority before which such suit or proceeding is commenced) shall, in addition to such other
relief as may be awarded, be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees and costs.

8. Recording. Upon its execution, the Easement shall be recorded with the Department of
Records and Elections, King County, Washington.

Dated this day of , 2012.

GRANTOR: GRANTEE:

COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT

By:

{ts:

STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) ss INDIVIDUAL

COUNTY OF KING )

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this
instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes
mentioned in the instrument.

DATED:

NAME:

(Print Name)
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington
Commission Expires:

If the legal owner of the Real Property is not an individual, please complete the following
signature verification information:



Signature Verification - Representative Capacity

I hereby certify that I am the authorized signatory for the legal owner of the Real Property.
Artached herewith is verification of my authority to sign on behalf of the:

Corporation
Limited Liability Company
Joint Venture
Partnership
Other - Specify:

L W i T R Y

Signature

STATE OF WASHINGTON )
} ss REPRESENTATIVE

COUNTY OF KING )

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this
instrument, and acknowledged it as the of
to be the free and voluntary act of such entity for the uses and purposes mentioned in the

instrument.

DATED:

NAME:

{Print Name}
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington
Commission Expires:




STATE OF WASHINGTON )
} ss
COUNTY OF KING )

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that
is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this
instrument, on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument, and
acknowledged it as the of Covington Water District to be
the free and voluntary act of such entity for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

DATED:

NAME:
(Pri Name)

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington
Commission Expires:




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
WATERLINE EASEMENT

That portion of the Nerthwest quarter of the Southeast Guarter of Secticn 4, Township 21 North,
Range 6 East, Willamette Meridian, in King County, Washington, more particularly described as
follows:

COMMENCING at {he center of Section 4;

THENCE South 03°43'39" West, 35.72 feel along the West line of said Northwast quarter of the
Sautheast quarier to the Southerly margin of Southeast 296ih Skeel;

THEMCE South 85°49'40° East, 218.65 est along said Southerly margin to the TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING;

THENCE CONTINUING South 85°49'40" East, 20.00 feet along said Southerly margin;

THENCE South 02°54'03" West, 100.58 feet;

THENCE North B7"05'57" West, 35,37 feel;

THENCE North 02°54'03" East, 22.92 feet;

THENCE South 87°05'57" Easl, 15.37 feet lo a point which bears South 02°54'03" West from the
TRUE POINT QF BEGINNING;

THENCE North 02°54'03" East, 71.11 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Project Name: King County Fire Station Mo. 28
August 13, 2012
Page 1 of 1
BODG
15360L.001.doc
Exhibil: 15360EXHO1-WAT.dwg



CENTER SECTION 4
(POINT QOF COMMENCEMENT)

EXHIBIT B

|

i

]

!

1'=120'

8E 266TH §7.

"N UNE SE1/7 SEE. %, THP 3T, AL

—— e

TPO.B. —\ S85°49'40E £

SEF4940°E 718,05 ) 20.00'
po .
-t
20' WATERLINE 3
EASEMENT 1 3
NO2'54°03"E =
FIREL Z
Sa7o8'57°E &
15.37 502’5403 W
d NOZ'54'03°E 100.58' Z
] 20.97 @
= L 2
i NETDS'ETW_" x
g 3837 o
g g
= =
r &
;)
E
L=y
I
3
=]
g
a
xI
&
2
L]
w
%
g
a
=
w
L]
u)
=
2]
2
[Ty
=
g
&
E
SCALE: For: J0B NUMBER
HomeoM Ve oL WA KING GOUNTY FIRE | 15360
G T
& "% KENT, WA 98032 STATION NO. 98 15360L001.00C
P % [425;251-5222 -
~ " (425)251-8782 FAX Titla: SHEET
3 € oo enomeerig, Lo | WATERLINE EASEMENT
% BLANNING, SURVEYING,
0 g™ ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES EXHIBIT 1,1
\__DESIGNED [0RawN —BCG___ [cHeECKkED __DOG_ [APPROVED__EGG_ JOATE . G0G__ )




EXHIBITB

COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT
18631 SE 300" PI
COVINGTON WASHINGTON 98042

PUBLIC AGENCY WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT
This AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of 20,

between Covington Water District, hereinafter called the “District” and the City of Black
Diamond, a Public Agency, hereinafter called the “Owner”,

Basis for Maintenance Agreement;

WHEREAS an authorized representative of the undersigned Owner has entered into a System
Extension Agreement with the District dated July 20, 2011, and has completed the construction of
the improvements in accordance with the District Standards and Specifications for Water Main

Construction;
WHEREAS, the Owner is a Public Agency or unit of local government,

WHEREAS, the District has a need to insure the public agency fulfill the Maintenance Bond
requirements of the System Extension Agreement, and pursuant to Washington State Senate bill
5858, passed during the 1993 Regular Session;

NOW THEREFORE, the owner hereby agrees and binds itself and its legal representatives,
successors and assigns, as follows:

Terms of the Maintenance Agreement:
The Owner shall well, truly and faithfully repair, replace or correct;

1. Roadway depressions, splitting or other damage resulting from defects in said work or the
material used therein, including, but not limited to , insufficient compaction, air pockets,
and failures resulting from trenching or boring for installation of said mains and
appurtenances for a period of two (2) years from the date of acceptance of the above
water mains and appurtenances by the District; and

2. Any other defects in said work or the material used therein, that may occur within one (1)
year from the date of acceptance of the above water mains and appurtenances by the
District.

Then this agreement shall be void, but otherwise, shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and
year first above written.

OWNER COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT,
Print Name: WASHINGTON

By: By:

Title: Title: General Manager

Date: Date:

Public Agency Agreement

03/08



MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and City Council

FROM: Pete Butkus

RE: Easement for water line and Maintenance Agreement
DATE 13 SEP 2012 - for Council Meeting on 04 OCT 2012

The first document is an Easement for water utility facilities on and under city-owned land, specifically
the Black Diamond Fire Station located at 22015 SE 296 ST, a/k/a Fire Station 98. The second document
is a standard Maintenance Agreement.

Easement:

¢ This requested easement covers the most recent water system improvements needed to put
fire suppression sprinklers in the station. It includes the water line, a post valve and a backflow
prevention device in an underground vault.

* Requesting an easement is a standard procedure and would be similar to the City water utility
obtaining an easement for similar facilities that serve a public school.

* | note that the cost of the water line and related work, including the fire suppression sprinklers,
was through former Fire District 17 funds that are now managed by Fire District 44 (Mountain
View Fire).

Maintenance Agreement:

¢ This Agreement covers the construction work performed and materials supplied for the water
{ine work that is the subject of the Easement. The Maintenance Agreement covers iwo key
aspects:
o Construction work done under the supervision of the staff of Black Diamond/Mountain
View Fire. It is simply a way to make sure that pipe backfill and surface paving work is
covered for “defects” over a two-year period of time. | have discussed the project
construction with Fire Department leadership and based on their observation of the
work performed that are no issues anticipated with backfill or pavement work.
o The provision on materials is one that we or the Fire Department would potentially have
recourse to the materials supplier if any such defect became apparent.

Recommended Motion:

| move to adopt the Resolution to authorize the Mayor to sign the Easement and the
Maintenance Agreement for water line work at Fire Station 98.

Attachments: {2)



	Council Agenda 10-04-12
	AB12-075
	AB12-057A
	AB12-076

